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1. Acronyms, Abbreviations and Glossary of Terms

Az Acronyms and Abbreviations

vC Vice Chancelior

ICPAK Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya
IPSAS Internationsl Public Sector Accounting Standards
OAG Office of the Auditor General

PEM Public Finance Management

PPE Property Plant & Equipment

UnB University Management Board

KUCCPS Kenya Universities and Colleges Central Placement Service
FY Financial ¥ ear

TUM Technical University of Mombasa

150 International Organization for Standards

13: Glossary of Terms

Fidueiary Managemeni- Members of Management direetly entrusted with the responsibility of
fnancial resources of the organisation

Comparative Year- Means the prior period.
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2. Key University Information and Management

(a2} Background infaormation
(b) Technical University of Mombasa is an 150 certified institution of global excellence in
advancing knowledge, science and technology. Its origin can be traced back to the late 19405
as the first iﬂ&ﬁmﬂmufh.igher learninig to be established in the coastal region of Kenya. TUM

1972), Mombasa Polytechnic (1972-2007), Mombasa Palytechnic University College through
a Legal Notice No. 160 of 2007, and finally awarded the charter s Tochnical University of
Mombasa on 30 January 2013 (under the Universities Act 2012). The University’s main
campus is domiciled in Kenya within Mombasa County and it has two satellite Campuses in
Ewale and Lamu Counties.

(€} TUM is profoundly committed i providing quality higher education as envisioned by its
founders and mandated by Statute. It has five establishd Schools namely: Applied and
Health Sciences, Engincering and Technology, Business, Humanities and Social Sciencis,
School of Graduate Studies and an Institute of Computing and Informatics. The University
admits students across the globe ranging from KUCCPS to Self-Sponsored programmes
(55P). Ax a result of the high demand for TLM programmes, the student population has
tremendously prown over the years, and currently stands at 19,127 composed of 12,768 males
and 6,359 females. TUM also recognizes the importance of human capital in driving the vision
of the institution and boasts of 341 teaching staff and 269 sdministrative staff, giving a total
of 610. To ensure programmes are congruent with the market demands, the University
Incorporates industry, stakeholders and professional bodies in the development and review
of programmes to comfortably offer solutions in the labour market in the quoest 1o support
the Kenya Vision 2030,

(U}  Principal Activities

Vision

A University of global excellence in advancing Knowledge, Science and Technology.

Mission

To advance knowledge and its practical application through teaching, research, and innovation

to serve both industry and the community.

iv
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Key University Information and Munagement {continued)

Muotto

Endeavour and Achieve (fiddu Tajiddu)
Strategic Objectives and Principle activities

i)

i)
ki)
iv)
v

i)

(e) Key

Provide quality academic progranmes.

Promote research, science, technology and innovation.

Increase access and equily to terbary and University education.

Pravide adequate facilities and infrastructure required by the expanding University.
Provide information communication technology solutions to support learning activities
and management of the University.

Institute a manpower and human resources management plan that maintains a
competent and efficient workforce.

Ensure quality and relevance in all programumes.

Produce graduates with desirable attitudes able to confront the various challenges in their
lives,

Institute mutually beneficial linkages and collaborations.

Market Technical University of Mombasa as a leading brand name in training and
innovation in engineering. science and technology.

Movide a finance mobilization plan that ensures a sustainable resource base for
development and recarrent expenditure.

Management

Technical University of Mombasa day-to-day management is under the following key orguns:

i)

i)
ik}
v

University Council
Vice Chancellor
Management Board
University Senate

d) Fiduciary Managemenl

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 300
June 2023 and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

Mo, Desigmation Mame

1. Vice Chancellor Prol_ Laila Abubakar

2. Dep. Vier Clancellor (Academic, Research and Extorsion) Prof. Peter Gichang

3 Dep. Vice Chancellor (Administration, Finance and Planning) | Prof. Joseph Rasowe
& Registrar (Adnunistration and Planning) Dr. Shivani Patel

B Regintenr (Academic Afisirs) Dr. Cramwe Kibiti
K3 Hagistrar (Parinership Ressarch and Innovation) Dr. Michae! Juma Saulo
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[Na. Designation — —
7. Firance Officer CPA Dalion Mwaghoghe il
B Precurement Manager Mr. James Odhiambo
g, University Librarian Dr. Wanyenda Chilima 1
10, Boan of Studenis Mr. Joal Awino
Finance, Planning and General Purpose Committee -
Ml:mi:mh.lp; -

i) Ensuring the preparation of proper books and records of dccounts of income and

iif) Fund raistng for the Universi :

v} Receiving, considering and recommending proposal of physical development plans;
vl Considering of plans and budgels for recurrent and development expenditure; and
v} Monitoring of construction Projects in progress.

Human Resource Management Commiltes

Membership: -

i) Chairperson- independent Council Member as per section 36(1) of the Universities Act.
i) Permanent Secretary- Ministry of Education Representative.

tif) One independent Member appointed as per section 36(1) of the Universities Act.

iv) Viece Chancellor- Secretary.

Terms of Refercnce
1) Advise the Counil on Schemes of Service and Terms and Conditione of Service for Stafr.
i} Advise Couniil on Staffing requirements and recruitment of Senior Officers.
iil} Recetve and consider from Management disciplinary cases and appeals,
v} Advise the Council matiers relating to the welfare of staff of the Univorsity.

Audit, Risk and Compliance Commitiee
Membership: -
i) Chairperson- independent Council Member as per section 36(1) of the Universitics Act.
i) The Cabinet Secretary, National Treasury and Planning Representative,
L) One independent member appointed as per section 36(1) (d) of the Universitios Act.
tv) Internal Auditor who shall be Secretary to the Committee,

Terms of Reference

vi
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i} Reccive and consider reports on University internal and external finances and sulumit its
findings.

i) Review financial statements prior to approval by the Council

fii} Ensure effectivencss of internal Audit function.

iv) Advice on systems ol internal controls and their effectivensss ensure that therd are
sffactive measures in place to mitigate against identified business risks.

Sealing and Statute Committee

Membership:
i)  Chairperson- independent Council Member-as per section 36(1) of the Universities Act.
i)  Permanent Secretary- Ministry of Bducation Representative,
iii) Omne independent Member appointed as per section 36(1) of the Universities Act.
iv) Vice Chancellor- Secretary.

Terms of Reference
i} Authorize on behall of Council the application of the University Seal documents.
i) Receive and recommend for approval /amendments of Statutes.
iif) Recommend the review of statutes of the University from time to time and whenever
MeCessary.
iv) Advice and or perform on any other matter as may be mandated by the Council.

¢) University Headquarters

Bl

Technical University of Mombasa.
Tom Mboya Avenue,

P.0O. Box 90420-80100),

Mombasa, Kenya

University Contacls

Telephone: (254) 41-2492222/3/4

Fax: 254) 41-2495632

Maobile: (254) 0724 955377/ 0733955377

E-mail: mfoftimac ke
yefitumeac. ke

Website: www tum.acke

University Bankers

i) National bank of Kenya.
TUM Branch
P.O. Box 576-80100
Mombasa.

i) Co-operative Bank Limited
Nkrumah Branch
P.D. Box B7771-80100
Mombasa.

vit
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i) Standard Chartered Bank Limited,
Treasury Square Branch
.0 Box 90170-80100
Mombasa.

) Kenya Commercial Bank
Mvita Branch
0. Box B3534-80100
Mombasa,

v} Family Bank
Jomo Kenyattn Branch
P.O. Box 97268-80100

vi} Equity Bank
Digo Road Branch
P.O. Bank S0016-80100
Mombasa,

vii) Absa Bank
Moi Avenue
P.O Box 9NR2 - 80100
Mombaga.

viit) Gulf Bank
Jomo Kenyatta Avonye Hranch
P.O Box 81189-80100
Mombasa,

Independent Auditors

Auditor-Gerjeral

Office of the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
.0, Box 30084

GIPO 00100

Nairobi, Kenya

Principal Legal Adviser

The Atorney General

State Law Office and Diepartment of Justice
Harambee Avenue

PO, Box 40112

City Square 00200

Mairabi, Kenya

viil
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3. The University Council

Ret

Council Members

Ditails

PROE. FRANCE NDUNGL KIBERA, C.BS
Counctl Chalrmah

t*rof. Kibera holds a Doctor of Philosophy (I"D)
degree in  Business Admimstration  From
Utiversity of Toronto, and a Masler of Business
Administration from  University of Alberta,
Canada He did his Bachelor of Commernce (B
Com) degree program Al the East Africa
Uiniwersity, MNairobL

MR, STANLEY KAGERA

5 Ropresentative - National Troasury
Pate of Birth: 117 November 1969

Mr. Kagera holds Master's Degree in Economic
Policy Management from Makerere University
and a Bachelor of Arts in Economics from
Kenyatta University

He i currently the Deputy Director (Pulblic-
Private Partnerships) at the National Troasury wpicl
Planning and has over 20 years of e perience in
EConOmics

He is the represontative of the Cabinel Secrefary,
sjational Treasury and Planning representative to |
the University Council

M Kaiga s the alternate to PS-State Department
for University Bducation and Research, Ministry |

i . of Bducation
M5 ANN KAIGA
S Representative- Stale Department of Univarsity
Education and Rescarch
Date of Birth: 229 Augpust 1065
Or. Mwazumbo, holds a PhD in Strategic

. I
Dr. PAUL MWASARU MW AZUMBO
Pate of Birth: 31# October 1963

Management, Masters in  Business Strategic |
Management, and Bachelor of Science in
Chemistry from Uiniversity of Nairobi He holds
Inlernational  Diplomas — in Envirorumental
Management and Occupational Health and salety
Management. He is the [hrector for Absolute
Integration Management Syaterns Limited and the
Lead Auditor at SG5 Kenya

ix
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— Date of Birth: 15 january 1956

'l ] =
MS. ALISON IRENE NJERI KARIUK]
Independent Counci Mombag
Date of Birth: 19 February 1972

DR, ASMA HAD AWAD H
independent Council Member

Date of Birth 16 July 1982

MR, MUHAMMAD ALL LOO
Independent Council Momber

MS. GRACE NEKOYE KATASD
Independent Couniil Mamber
__ Date of Birth 16* August 1964

—_— __—\—________

C— e e

.——_———____-____

e

Ms Kariuki, holds a8 Master's in Internationa]
roda lions & I'Jew-lup:nmtﬂiutljn:-.s, Bacholor of | AW
{LLB} from University of Nairob| and Diplema in
Law. She is also Corparate Governance Auditar.

Dr, Awadh holds PhD In Environmental Scipnes |
from Pwani University, Mastars m  Urlan
Environmental Planning  and Management,
Bachelor of Scicnce in Environmental Sejonce
from Maseno University and Diploma i
| Management, Currenily she i Manager-Coast
Kenya Programmes at the WWF Konya

Mr. Loo holdy Master's in Finance and Bacheloy af
Commaerce in Accounting. He s g fully qualified
Accountant (CPAK) and Certifind Secretary (U5K)
ardl a Momber of [nstitute of Certifiod  Pulblic
Accountants  of Renya {ICPAK) and Institiito o
Certified Secretarics of Kenya (ICSK). He i the
Director  of Badi Loo & Associates And
Muhammad Loo & Associntes

Ma. Katasi holds LLM in International Trade and
| Investments (Usd) LLE (HaiN) and Dip. in Law
from Kenya School of Law, Dip. Forensic
Accounling from Kenya Institule of Sludies in .
Criminal Justice, Membor of the (TOSK) and
Certified Trainor af Trainers (ALDRY She g |
currently Lecturer at [KUAT and paiiner in the
ow  firm of Matemy Katasi & Asyociates.
Advacates in Nairobi

i___________
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PROE. LAILA UWESO ABUBAKAR
Vice-Chancellor/ Council Secrelary
Diate of Birth: 13 December 1961

Prof. Abubakar helds a PhD in Bio Chemistry,
Masters of Science in Biochemistry and a Brchelor
of Science (Biochamisiry & Chemistry).

She is the Secretary to the Council.
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1. Key My nagement Team
—

Management

__ Details

PROF. LAILA UWESO ABUBAK AR
Vice-Chancellor/ Couneil Secretary,

PROF. PETER GICHANG]
Deputy Vice Chancollor
{Academic, Research & Extension),

| PROF. JOSEPH OUMA RASOWE
Deputy Vice Chancellor
— (Administration, Finance & Planning).

kil

--\_\__-\_—_

Prof Abubakar halds 2 PR n Bio Chemistry, |

{ Masters of Scionce it Bioe harnl'slrry and a Bachelos

of Sciancy (Biochemistry & Chemistry) |

Prof., Gichangi holds & Php i Obstolrics &
Lymaacology, MSe Obstetrics & “ynaccolopy, BSe (1 |
Human Anatomy and  Basic  Medical Dheproe.
MBCHH.

Prof. Rasowo holds a PAD in Aquatic Fealogy/ |
Aquaculture, MSe in Marine Ecology & Aquaculture,
MBA in Strategic Management, B5c in I'!nuu:_v.-"|
Loolopy

|
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DR, CROMWEL KIBITI
Registrar Academic Adfairs

Dr. Cromwell Kibiti holds a BSc Biochemistry,
(KU}, (KU), MSc Biotechnology. (K1), PhD.
Ethnobotany, (University of Fort Hare, South
Africa '|

DR, SHIVANI PATEL
Registrar Administration and [Mlanning

' CPA DALTON MWAGHOGHD JAMES
1"|||-11'u1!_('.‘|[|'1'-:'|‘_g.

D, Patel holds a PhD in Strategle Mgt from JELTAT,
Higher Dip in HRM from KNEL, Dip in HE from ]
KIM, MBA on International Business Admn andl B |
on Information Systems and Technology from LISTL
and Craduate Trainee from KRA —|

CPA James holds a MBA (Strategic Managomant), I
B (Hon) Appled Accounting, in a Fellow ot
Chartered Certifled Accountant (FULCA), Corfifted |
Public Accountant of Kenya CPA (K), and a Certified
Secretary of Kenya OS5 (K)

X1il
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3. Chairman's Statemeni

Financial Performance

During the financial year (FY) 20222023 TUM had a surplus of KShs. 38 M in comparison
to the previous Fy 2020/2021 of KShs, 144 M, this being a reduction by KShs, 106 M. The
reduction was attributed by increased operating and administration expenses due 1o the
increased cost of commaodities, however the university is committed to ensuring efficient
utilization the limited availahle resources.

Strategic Direction

The University is committed to offering quality programs in line with its strategic vision ol
global excellence in advancing knowledge, science and technalogy. The 2016-2022 strategic
plan was guided by five strategic themes namely; Governance, Physical Infrastructy re,

Science Technology Engineering and Mathematics (STEM), Quality Assurance and Fuman
capital,

the Public Service for o pproval. The University was able to hold the 4 Multi-Disciplina ry
Conference with most of the papers published in the Multidisci plinary Journal of Technical
University of Mombasa (MJTUM),

Future Outlook

The University is in the process of finalising the review of its third 2023-2037 Stralegic Plan
with a focus on hands-on teaching, research and innovation to serve both ndustry and the
community. There are plans to increase the academic programs through the introduction of
EW courses on blue economy such as Marine Sciepce and Maritime studies, The University
will promate partnershi P. collaboration and linkages with international and  local
stakeholders for mutual benefits, increase the research output, innovation activities, revenue
streams and webometric ranking. In addition, the University is committed to be in tandem

xiv
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with the national education trends by strengthening the TVET institute and responding to
the requirements of Competency Based Education and Training (CBET).

The University is experiencing the twin problems of inadequate and ageing physical
{acililics and infrastructure. In order to address the above, the strategic plan 2023-2027 aims
lo construct and rehabilitate the facilities, purchase mator vehicles, TT hardware and

software and equpment.

Chairman of the Council

Name: %&m.gﬂm‘k%ﬂ Date. .- ﬁ:/wz;:? ....................
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6. Report of the Viee Chaneellor

I hereby present Technical University of Mombass (TUM) Annual Report and Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 june 2023,

The University is committed to fulfilling the Bottom-Up Economic Transformation Agenda (BETA),
Kenya's Vision 2030, the UN’s Sustainable Development Goals and Africa’s Agenda 2063 as well as
industry demands through embracing competency-based curriculum. To ensure programmes are
congruent with the market demands, the University incorparates industry, stakeholders and
professional bodies in the development anid review of programmas to comfortably offer solutions in
the labour market.

The University has five Schools namely: Applied and Health Science, Engincering and Technology,
Business, Humanities and Social Sciences, School of Graduate Studies and an Instituti: of Computing
and Informatics, The student population has tremendously grown over the last ton years, and
currently stands at 19,627 compared to a population of a pproximately 12,000 in the year 2012 The
University has 326 teaching and technical staff and 360 administrative staff,

In 2022/2023 FY, TUM successfully implemented a number of work place policies to affirm good
governance and effective and efficient resource mobilization and utilization. Towirds this end, the
University surpassed the Appropriation in Aid larget from KShs. 842 M o KShs. LO10 M, leading
Lo a positive variance of KShs, 167 M, thus enabling the University to meet its abligations as and when
they fall due. The impact of the University's performance is further reflected in the recent improved
performance contracting (PC) ranking for the 18% PC Cycle FY 2021 /2022 by maintain the composile
score of .71 being very good. During the year the University conducted its third multidisciplinary
conference and held its 10% Graduation ceremony virtually where 3,500 graduated.

Thiscould not have been achisved without the commitment of the University Council, Management,
Stalf, students and other stakeholders to whom we are indebited

Vice Chancellor Sign H‘u’

Name: Prof. Laila Abubakar Date..ﬂ,],.l.t.l E.DR.E.

xwi
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7. Statement of Performance against Predetermined Objectives for FY 2022/2023

Section 81 Subsection 2 {f) of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 requires the
Accounting Officer to include in the financial statement, a statemient of the University's
performance against predetermined objectives.
TUM has five strategic themes and objectives within the Strategic Plan for the FY 2018- FY
2022 which are as follows:

1) Governance

2) Financial sustainability

3) Quality Assurance

4) Centre of Excellence in Science Technology Engineering and Mathematics,

5) Human Capital Development
TUM develops its annual work plans based on the above five themes, Assessment of the
Board's performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. TUM
achieved its performance targets set for the FY 2021/2022 period for its 2018 - 2022 strategic
themies, as indicated in the diagram below: -

Strategic Objective Key Performance | Activities Achievements
Themes Indicators
Covernance Organizational | Establishod office Establish and strengthen | Strengthen pesearch
structure the oifice of Registrar and exlension
Parmership Research activities
and Innovations
Restructure the office of
Corporate
Comnmumnications to
Improved handle public refations | Better PR
communication
Review of Improved Develop other new Policies in place,
management | povernance policies.
Stremgthen Legal | Status report The process of [lling
CHfice in the gap s ongoing,.
External advert done
on  24th  May, 2022
advertising for the
position of Legal
- officer,
Change Reparts on new Aligning all policies 1o - Several policies have
Management policies, the new strategic plan been  aligned  and
Develop other new approved by  the
B = | palicies Couneil

Xl
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I | -Policy formulation s |
still engoing. B
Branding Industrial attac hment Establish an Industrial Palicies in place and
and inteenship Attachment Policy and Increased TUM
_ | guidelines. Communication Policy visibility
Risk MS/ ISMS risks Identify risks Compliance and
Management miabrices Carry out Risk documented status
and compliance | documented Assessment analysis. reports,
Finarcial To ensure Number of Patents | Incroase the numberof | 42 Palents have boen
sustainability | financial submittod sell-sponsored studenty submitted 10 Ky
sustainability Number of Proposals {S5F") Patents, research since the EY
funded externally, and business 2018/ 2019 toy clate.
opportunities, 25 rescarch pProposaly
have  boen  funded
since 2018,
Facilities usod 1o Commercialize Enginoering, Business
generate money for labaratory and and ICT Departments
the rolevant workshop facilities, afready penorates
departments. funds. o
Quality Ensure quality Acquire QM5 Sensitization on Thiz cenbinued
Assurance Eovernange certification, 0012015 and certification  of (e
structore recertification. University QMs Ly
Kenya  Limited
since Docember, 2018
B0 S001:2015
Sensibization
Trainings 1o all TUM
wtalf in June and July,
2020 and 20271
Ensure quality in | Numbor  of CUE | Complinnce withCUE | .12 programmes were
curriculum accrodited and other professional accredited by CLUE in
development, Programmes, bodies’ regulations, January 2020,
teview and Number of pow -3 progmmmes were
delivery Programmes aceredited by CUE n
developed and May, 2021,
submitted to  Cug 10 now programmes
and el were developed and
professional bodies. submitied 1o CLIE far
Numbaor of accroditation between
FOME A s March 2019  apd
iﬂﬂva:l by Docembser 2000
completion of cycle or <2 programmes were
as need may arise, developed angd
Number of submitied s
programmes professional bediss for
revamped and - approval in Augus
submitied (o CUE, ainl September 2020,
& programmes wero
meviswod aftor
i completion of cycle or |

KVIlI
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as teed arose |
Pecember 2019,

29 programmes
revamped and  fe-
submitted v CUE in
between  April 2019

and July 2022
Centre of Expand Research | Attendance sheet, Each department to Maths and physics
Excellence in | and Innovations | number of carry out at least twa department.
STEM workshop/seminars | seminas/ waorkshops
conducted. anmually.
Number of Organized three Improved research
multidisciplinary International culture.
conferences, Multidisciplinary
- Confarenco.
Bullding Dissemination onof | Establish School driven University journal
research Culture | research findings. University Research established.
Journal
Number of research | Increase fund allocation Punds has increased
funded, number of 1o individual researchers | for individuals.
fncilitated peer and research groups. 150 publications done
journal publication. were dome during the
implementation
period of the plan
Improve skills of Mumber of technical | Initiate staff and Four (4] students and
teaching and staff and lecturers studenis exchange (6] six staff were
technical staff. | attachod to the programmes including engaged with the Mid
fcustry. Adjunct professorships. | Swedon University
Enhance Number of Develop additional 26 Molls signed from
Partnership, collaborations, mutually beneficial 2019 o dale and their
Collatsorations parmerships. reacarch mplamentabion is
and Linkages. partnership/ collaboratio | ongoing
ns
Human Attract and Training reports and | 500 staff have been Relevant skills and
Capital retain competent | number of staffs sensitized on service improved services.
Development | workforce trained. deltvery, public
complaints, Road Safety,
Carruption previention,
and fire handling,
among other relevant in-
house trainings. ]
Number of trainings | A total of 28 staff trainad improved customer
attended. at KSG and other services

rlevant Institutions on
short courses.

xix
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8. Corporate Governance Statement

responsible for the overall governance of the University,
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The Council Members Terms (FY 2022/2023)

FULL COUNCIL BOARD MEETINGS
During the FY 2022/ 2123 the Council met on the lollowing dalbes:

2o
20x7

COUNCIL
MEMBER

Prof. Drancis M.
| Kibera

Dr. Davidson

Mwaisaka Mghanga

23/08/ |

2023

130l |
d0EL

Arch. Alfred Ogalo
Manga
R Jane Mbagt
hutin

134%

2023

2023

¥ | W

D, Gift Kimonge
_E'r.umlm_r

Mr. Stanley Maina
| Kagera
l b, Ann Kalgi

) |

1304/ | v0s) |
2043 | 1023 |

| | | 1.' i

| Ms. Ann Sabania

|T\-‘5r Muhammad Ali

L0

XXl

(& | COUNCIL MEMEER POSITION APPOINTMENT | EXIT TTERM |
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| Ms. Florenoce Sila _[ Internal Auditor)
[_ T {SOcrefary
| Mr. Justin Oming [ Chief Internal

o | Auditor/Secreta

Succession Plan

The Universitios Act 2012 provides in Section 36 (5) the modalities of establishing an adequate
succession plan for the Council, The Unj versily has in place an adequate plan that ensyres that the
Council retains a quorum regardless of the expiration of terms of soma of its members, From the
breakdown of terms highlighted above, you will note that the Couneil terms are stagperad ensuring
that at no particular tinge would the Full Council b withoul quorum regardloss of Hhe expiry of
lerms of the members, This ensures continuity in the activities of the Council, Furthermore, the
Council Secretary notifics the Ministry of Education six manths (6) prior to the expiry ol term of a
council member to ensure that recruitment is undertaken and the pasition filled within the required

tirmelines,

Council Charter

The Council is guided by its Charter that defines the Council's roles and responsibilities as well as
functions and structures in @ way that supports the Couneil members in carrying out their strategic
oversight function. The Charter was adopted by the Council on 19 February 2079,

The Committees are also guided by Charters which were prepared inaccordance with the provisions
of the Circular on the Maragement of State Corporations {Guidelines an the Management of State
Corporations issued vide Circular No, OF /CAB9A/1A of March 2020. The Committer Chartore
wereapproved by the Counci in their meeting held on 148 July 2020,

Appointment and Remaval of Couneil Members

Council members are appointed through the Ministry of Fducation with the exception of the
Representative from the Mational Treasury. The Council Charter in section 2 4 provides the mstances
where membership shall cease and outlines that any removal of o mamber shall be through formal

revocation, save where the member has tendered a volunta Yy resignalion,
Roles and Functions of the Council and its Committees

The roles and fy netions of the Council are sl out in the Council Board Charter under section & These

roles include; Strategic  Direction, Recruiltment, Research, Education, Financial and Capital
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Owersight, Ethical Standards, Corporate Gavernance and Regulatory Compliance, Risk Owersight
and Stakeholder Management. The Council Commitices have been apportioned the above roles to
ensure delivery of its mandate.

Conflict of Interest

The University Couneil adheres to the provisions on declaration of Conflict of Interest by ensuring
st conllict of interest is declared befone any meeting of Couneil begins. The Council has also pat in
place & Conflict-of-Interest register submitted quarterly to the Ethics and Anti-Corraption
Commission. The Council has spearheaded the establishment of the Anti-Corruption and
whistleblowing policy in efforts to sensitise Counicil, Management and staff on the adverse effects
ol corruption and ensure that whistleblowing s encouraged and protected. Furthermore, the
University Code of Conduct and Ethics stipulates clearly the requirements on declaration of conflict
of interest, The Council approved the Conflict-of-Interest Policy in its meeting held on 14 July 2021,

Board Remuneration

Thi Council roceives remuneration as per the set Government Guidelines, During the FY2021 /2022
Council members were paid sitting, subsistence and travel allowances as per the Government

approved mies.

Council Evaluation

[y line with the provisions of the State Corporations Act 2012, the annual evaluation for the FY ended
3t June 2022 was done on 2340 August 2122, This was atmed at enabling the Council members and
the Committees to gauge their performance and identify areas of tmprovement. The evaluation was
undértaken by SCAC and the university is yet (o receive the evaluation results,

Council Diversity

“The Council of Technical University of Mombasa is committed to diversity and reflects a mix of
different skill sets beneficial to the Institution. The areas of expertise of the current Councl members
aro Chemistry, Law, Economics, Banking, Architecture, Procurement, Finance, Audit and Education,
The Council also meets the requirements on ethnic diversity.
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Below is the current Coupef] diversity structure:

COUNCIL MEMBER | POSITIGN GENDER | EXPERTISE | ETHNICITY
Prof. Francis N. Kibera | Council Chairmas Male Business Mgt | Kikuyn |
Dir. Davidson Independent member Male Law Taita
| Mwaisaka
Mr Stanloy Maina Alternate CS the Female Leonamics Kikuyu |
Kagera National Treasury and
. Planin
Ms.Ann Kaiga Alternate - PS Sgape Female Law Luhya
Department for
University Education
and Research (Ministry
af Education)
Arch, Alired Ogalo Independent membser Male Architecture Lusey
Mango
Ms. Jane Mbagi Mutua Independent member Female Education Kikuyu
D, Gift Kimonge Independent member Male Fimance/ Audit Mifikenda
Dzotbo
Ms. Ann Sabania Independent member Female Gendor Kikuyu
Prof. Laila Abubskar | Council Secretary; Vice Female Biochomistry Swahili |
Chancellor
| Mr. Mubammad Al Independent member Male Finance Bajunj
Loo
Ms. Alison Irene Njeri | Independent member Female Law Kenyan
Kariuki
Dr. Paul Mwasary Independent member Male Strategic Taita
Mwazimba Myt/ Chemistry
M. Grace Nekoye Independent member Female Law Luyha
Katasi
. Asina Hadi Awadh dependent member Female Environmental Arab
Sciences

University Management

Senate oversceing management of academic programs, The roles of UMB and Senate are detailed in
the: University Charter and its Statutes, Meetings of the Senate include Regular, Board of Examiners,
Special and Extraordinary. The Vice Chancellor of the University is the Chairperson of both UMB
ind Senate,
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9, Management Discussion and Analysis

In the financial year ended 30 June, 2023, Technical University of Mombasa closed with a net Surplus
of KShs. 37.8 M compared to prior year Surplus of KShs, 144.2 M, resulting to a decline in
performance by KSha. 1063 M. The decline in performance was attributed by increased
aperating and adminisiration expenses due to the increased cost of commaodities.

Total Income decreased to KShs. 1,949.1 M from KShs. 1,951.2 M in prior year 2021,/ 2022, 8 decrease
by KShs 2 M, The decrease was attributed by a decrease in A-in-A by KSha. 24 M from EShs. 989.3M
i previgus year to KShs. 986.5 M in the reporting year. The Appropriation in Aid (A-in-A) decrcase
was attributed to the decrease of other incomes by 4.1 M from 410.1 M in prior year to405.9 M in the
mntrw.Txﬂﬂnnfmhnwmrinnmd by 1.6 M from KShs. 579.1 M in the previous year to
4Shs. 580.8M in the current year. There was a slight increase of the GokK grant by KShs, 0.3 M in the
current year with no supplementary budget. However, it was noted that the GokK grant increment
witk not sufficient to fully cater for the University operations.

Total expenses increased by KShs. 104.2 M from ¥Shs, 1,507 (M in previous year to KShs: 19113 M
in the reporting year, This was mainly attributed by increase in personnel emoluments and operating
expenses by KShs, 15.2 M and 302 M respectfully due to increased aperations at the University, there
was also an increase in provision for had debts from KShs. 125 M to KShs, 723 M this was after the
implementation of Finance Debl policy in the carrent year. However, there was o reduction in
depreciation by KShs. 6.6 M attributed by fully depreciated facilities and infrastructure.

iii thie Statement of Financial Position, total assets increased by KShs. 13 M from KShs. 3,577 M in
the provious year to KShs. 3,587.7 M in the rrpurl:ingjrur.ﬂ'h!innmﬂwusnrh‘ibumd by the increase
in current assets by 58 M due to improved debt collection, The current liabilities decreased by KShs,
116:4 M due to commitment of the university to pay its trade and other payables as they fall due.
Thiere was an improvement in liquidity rtio messured by current ratic feom 1.3 in prior year 1o 2.1
in the current reporting year.
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0. Report of the Dircctors

30, 2023, which show the state of TUM affairs,

i) Principal activities

The principal activities of the University are teaching and research.
i) Results

i) Couneil
The Council members who served during the year are shown on page xxi to xxiii, Puring the year §
Council member's terms came to an end 5 new council members were dppointed

iv)  Auditors

The Auditor-General is responsible for the statutory audit of TUM in accordance with Article 229 of
the Constitution of kenyn and the Public Audit Asf 2015 for the FY ended June 30, 2023,

By Order of the Council

Prof. Laila Abubakar
Sceretary to the Council,
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11. Statement of Directors Responsibilitics

Section §1 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and section 14 of the State Corporations Act,
require the Council to prepare finaneial statements in respect of TUM, which give o true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the University at the end of the financial year and the operating results of
UM for that year, The Council are also required 10 ensure that the University keeps proper
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the University,
The Council is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the University.

‘Ihe Council is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the University's financial statements,
which giv:amnnndﬁuirvirwnfthumﬂfnfﬁﬁmufﬂw Uiniversity for and as at the end of the
financial year ended on June 30, 2023, This responsibility includes: (1) Maintnining adequate financial
mansgement arrangements and ensuring that these continee 1o be effective throughout the reporting
period; (ii) Maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy al any
fime the Fnancial position of the University; (i} Designing, implementing and maintaining internal
controls relevant to the preparation and [air presentation of the financinl statements, and ensuring thal
they are free from material misstatements, whether due 1o error or fraud; (iv) Safeguarding the assels
of the University; (v) Selecting and applying appropriale accounting policies; and (vi) Making
aeeounting estimates that arc reasonable in the circumstances.

The Council aicept responsihility for the University's Financial statements, which have been propared
using appropriate aceounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates,
in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner
required by the PIM Act, 2012 and (the State Corporations Act. The Council is of the opinion that the
University's linancial statements give i true and fair view of the state of TUM's transactions dunng the
financial year ended June 30, 2023, and of the University's financial position as at that dote. The
Council fiirther confirms the completeness of the accounting records maintained for the University,
which have been relied upon in the preparation of TUM’s financial staternents as well as the adequacy
af the systems of internal financial control.
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Nothing has come 10 the attention of the Council to indicags that the University will not FCINALn 4 gojng
concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statoment.

Approval of the financial statements

The University’s financial Statements were approved by the Couneil on_ [ rfl ES} ;/ 2023 and
signed on its behalf by:

Prof. Francis N, Kibera, CBS Prof. Laila Abubakar
Chairperson of the Couneil Vice Chancellor
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA
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FFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL F.OL Box 30 E_q,-u-u [a]7]

Emngine: Acoowmaliline HNAIRCEI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY OF MOMBASA
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

| draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfuiness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure the Government
achieves value for meney and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on the Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk
management environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by those
charged with governance for arderly, efficient and effective operations of the entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
govemance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review,

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statulory roles and
respansibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015, The three parts of
the report when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Qualified Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Technical University of
Mombasa set out on pages 1 to 46, which comprise the statement of financial position as
at 30 June, 2023, and statement of financial performance, statement of changes in nat

Report af the Auditer-Gencral o Technical Dniversiny of Mombase for the vear esded 30 e, 2003



assats statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory infarmation in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. | have obtained all
the information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit,

In my opinian, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, n all matenal
respects, the financial position of Technical University of Mombasa as at 30 June, 2023
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance
with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with
the Universities Act, 2012 and the Public Finance Management Act, 2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Trade Payables

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 23 to the financial siatements
reflects an amount of Kshs. 18,272,326 in respect of trade payables. Further, the amount
include Kshs.3,823,412 of payables due to Technical University of Mombasa Enterprises
Limited (TUMEL). Review of the TUMEL financial statements revealed that the university
owes the TUMEL an amount of Kshs.14 542 7456 and not Kshs.3,823,412 resulting to an
unexplained variance of Kshs. 10, 719,333,

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the trade payables of
Kshs. 18,272,326 could not be confirmed

The audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards for Supreme
Audit Institutions (1SSAIs). | am independent of the Technical University of Mombasa
Management in accordance with 1ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. | have fulfilled other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya, | believe
that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion

Emphasis of Matter
Budgetary Control and Performance

The statemient of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final revenue budget
and actual amounts on comparable basis of Kshs 1805030394 and
Kshs 1,940,311, 198 respectively, resulting to an over-funding of Kshs. 144,280,804 or B%
of the budget Similarly, the University expended Kshs.1.743.525825 against an
approved budget of Kshs 1,805,030,394 resulting to an under-expenditure of
Kshs. 61,504,560,

The under-expenditure may have affected negatively on servica delivery.

Report of the Auditor-Gencral on Techmizal Universify of Mambava for the pear ended 30 fme, M3
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter
Unresolved Prior Year Matters

In the audit report of 2021/2022 financial year, several audit issues were raised. However,
the issues remained unresclved as at 30 June, 2023, Management has not provided
satisfactory reasons for the delay in resolving the prior year audit issues. Further, the
status of the unresolved prior year issues are not indicated in the implementation status
of auditor's recommendations section of the financial statements as required by the
financial reporting guidelines issued by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Ardicle 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion an Lawfulness and
Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my repor, | confirm that, nothing has
come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been applied
lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion
Unsupported Routine Maintenance on Motor Vehicles and Transport

The statement of financial perfformance and as disclosed in Note 11 to the financial
statements reflects operating and administration expenses of Kshs. 139,708,755 which
includes Kshs.1,614,480 relating to routine maintenance of motor vehicles. However, the
repair services done on the motor vehicles were not entered in the motor vehicle log
books; the engineer's pre and post-mechanical inspection reports were not provided for
audit review and the nature of the repairs caried out in support of the expenditure were
not indicated. This is contrary to Section 159(2) of the Public Procurement and Asset
Disposal Act, 2015 which provide that a procuring entity shall record goods, works and
services received under subsection (1) in an inventory of the procuring entity as shall be
prescribed,

In the circumstances, the regularity and validity of expenditure of Kshs.1,614 480 on
routine maintenance of vehicles could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducled in accordance with the International Standards for Supreme
Audit Institutions (ISSAI) 4000. The Standard requires that | comply with ethical
requirements, plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements comply, in all

Report of the Awditor-General on Technical University of Mombasa for the year ended 30 June, 2021
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material respects, with the autharities that govern them. | believe that the audit evidence
| have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT OM THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERMAL CONTROLS, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

Ms reguired by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, and based on the audi
procedures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
the Effectiveness of Intemal Controls, Risk Management and Governance, | confirm that,
nothing else has come o my atlention to cause me fo believe that internal controls, nisk
management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion
Un-confirmed Investment Share Value

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 22 to the financial statements
reflect total investments of Kshs. 10,571,838 which include Kshs.5,571,938 in respect of
Seed Money TUM Enterprises Ltd. However, share certificate or investment documents
were not provided in support of the investment

In the circumstances, the completeness and accuracy of investment of TUM Enterprises
Ltd amount of Kshs.5, 571,938 could not be confirmed.

1. Non-compliance with the Gender Rule

Review of the University staff establishment revealed that three hundred and ninety-nine
(399), or sixty-nine (69%) of the five hundred and seventy-nine (578) University staff were
of one gender. This is contrary to Section 5.8(ii) of the University Human Resource
Policies and Procedures Manual which provide that the University will be a gender-
balanced University by ensuring that not more than two thirds (2/3) of positions in its
establishment are filled by either gender.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.
2. Failure to Maintain Litigation Register

The statement of financial performance and Note 11 to the financial statements reflects
operating/administration expenses totalling Kshs. 139,708,755 which includes
Kshs.4,196, 880 in respect of professional services central vote being expenditure on legal
fees incurred during the year, However, Management did not maintain a litigation register
that indicates total estimated costs, inclusive of legal and damages to be incurred and
legal costs (amounts, description and date) incurred to date as required of the Guidelines
on Asset and Liability Management in the Public Sector template as prescribed by the
Public Sector Accounting Standards Board.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

Report of the Auditor-General on Technical University of Mombasa for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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The audit was conducled in accordance with the International Standards for Supreme
Audit Institutions (ISSAls) 2315 and 2330. The Standards require that | plan and perform
the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective processes and systems of internal
controls, risk management and overall governance were operating effectively, in all
material respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and University Council

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Public Sector Accou nting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining an effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
University's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Unive rsity or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015.

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in-compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The University Council is responsible for overseeing the University's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
syslems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the contral
environment,

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 228(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assuranca, but
Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exisis. Misstatements can arise from fraud
ar eror and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

Repaort of the Astditor-General on Technical University of Mombasa for the vear ended 30 June, 2023
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reasonahly be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

in addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is ptanned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial stalements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(8) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and sudit of
compliance, | consider internal controts in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submi
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the ISSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatemnents and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
University's policies and procedures may delenorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropnate 1o provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from ermor, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the University's
ability to continue to sustain its services. If | conclude that a matenal uncertainty exists,
| am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit

Report of the Auditor-General on Technical University of Mombass for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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report. However, future events or conditions may cause the University to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the University to express an opinion on the financial statements.

* Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances,

| communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that are identified during the audit.

| also provide Management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
- requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safequards.

FCPAWa CBS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

25 March, 2024

Report af the Auditor-General on Technical University of Mombasa for the year gnded 30 Jupe, 2023
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13. Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 30 June 2023
Notes | 2022-2023 | 20212002
KShs KShs
KEVENLE
REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS:
GOK GRANTS 6 $62,347 916 961,990,435
TOTAL REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS 962,347 916 91,9940, 43
REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS. o
OTHER INCOME 7 0598581 | 43 151,79
TUITION FEES 8 580,977,408 579,156,37
| TOTAL REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS 986,963,257 G989, 308,17;
TOTAL INCOME 1,949,311,1 95 1,951,208 60
EXPENSES =
| PERSONNEL EMOLUMENTS 9 1,476,593.60] 1,461,325, 365
 COUNCIL EXPENSES 10 12, 178.754 B606.47)
OPERATING / ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES 11 139,708,755 108 478,25¢
TEACHING EXPENSES 12 58,156,463 59,614,144
STUDENTS WELFARE 13 10,882,034 7,006,777
_REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 14 43,606,218 45,027,005
DEPRECIATION 29 04.436,93 Mi1,051,424
AMORTIZATION 30 068 K03 #3403
AUDIT FEES 15 1,400,000 1 400,000
PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS 16 72371519 12,529,134
BAD DEBTS WRITTEN OFf' 17 i $(H,960
i 1,911,309, 478 1807,077,763
SURPLUS/ {DEFICIT) FOR TIE YEAR 38,000,720 144,220,543
TAX 0 o
NET SURPLUS/ (DEFICTT) FOR THE YEAR 38,001,720 | 144,220 442

The notes set owl on Pages 6 o 43 form an integral part of these |7

Statements sct out on pages | 1o 5 were signed on behall of the Council by:

—
lllll Ill.l-!i-l‘.ll--li‘il"'l-‘llr-lI‘H

=

Prof. Laila Abubakar Dalton Mwaghogho James
Vice Chancellor Finance Officer

ICPAK M/No: 2744
Date ql ” ,102.3

Date 69/ r'r/*.‘l-ri:?»

¥
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inancial Statements. The Financial

L4
..-"L'-.,ﬁ-'j"'--ﬁ?.f

LR E T T

Prof. Francis N, Kibera, ClS

Chairman of the Council

Date %/3& 2SS
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15 Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2013

MNotes 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS N
INVENTORIES 18 58,506,614 £7,031,99¢
RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE 149
TRANSACTIONS 350,566 185 139,334,279
RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE 20
TRANSACTIONS 16,324,958 17,808,321
CASH & BANK BALANCES 21 129,728 006 85,511,713
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 855,125,763 200,586,272
NON - CURRENT ASSETS
PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT 29 3,021,389, 187 1,066, 1 59,630
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 30 685,229 1,817,278
I_lN‘.-’EETMEN'IE b 10,571,938 10,571,938
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 3,032,646, 354 LATH 548, 840
TOTAL ASSETS ASRTTTLI1T 1,579,125, 118
CURRENT LIABILITIES
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23 18,272,126 35,002,035
OTHER CREDITORS M 234,946,669 134,634,049
CASHBOOK OVERDRAI 21 0 4,181,853
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 253,218,995 TameaT!
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 25 17,954,446 41,962,785
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 37,064, 46 41,967,785
TOTAL LIABILITIES 291,173,441 415,982,762
NET ASSETS
CAFITAL FUND 26 1 427,167,953 3AZ7,167.95)
OTHER FUNDS & RESERVES 27 (407,832,810) (533,040, 187)
DONATED ASSETS FUND 28 273,263,513 2649 034,590
TOTAL NET ASSETS 3,296,598,676 3,163,152,356
| TOTAL NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 3,.587,772,117 ISTHIIS1IE

The Fnancial stalements set out on pages 1 1o 5 were signed on behall of the {.‘mmr:il by:

k.*.‘a-. peEEeREERAER RN S

Prof. Laila Abunbakar
Viee Chancellor

oue 8 |11 2023

Finnnee Officer

ICPAK M/'N
=y

Bﬂluu Mwaghogho Jﬂl!lll'.‘-'!

2744

023

............ ERmaEmEdbbEn :- R L

Prof. Francis N, Kibera, CBS
Chairman ol the Council

Date GE”HJE-‘;'-L}
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17. Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2023

2022-2023 | 2021-2022-
Notes KShs KShs
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CSURPLUS/ (DEFICTT) FOR THE YEAR 38,000,720 | 144,220,842

ADJUSTMENT FOR:
DEFRECIATION 29 94,436,931 | 101,051 AZe
AMORTIZATION 30 968,803 454,04
INCREASE/ DECREASE IN PROVISION FOR BAD DENTS 16 T2ATH9 12,522,13_{
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEFORE
WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 205,785,373 | 15824844
WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES —
INCHEASE/ DECREASE INVENTORIES 18 (574,619) 2,143, 863
TRADE RECEIVABLES 19&20 | (s7.126,500) | (133,393,747
PRICL YEAR ADIUSTMENT-PROVISION FOR BAD DEHTS o] (waesema)
TRADE PAYANLES 23824 | (1ia17,009) | (119418413
NET CAGH FLOW FROM WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES (199,118.216) | (314,588,021,
NI CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 6,667,157 | (56,309.576)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
PURCHASE OF PROPERTY, PLANT & BQUIFMENT 29 (40.714,008) | (161469877
INTANGIHE ASSITS 30 (892,382) | (1,769,840
PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT-ASSETS 29 47,520 | 28.039,190
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (50,558,870) 10,122,369
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES |
LONG.TERM LIABILITIES 25 (4,008 339} 671,500
OTHER FUNDS & RESERVES 30 95,444,600 P
NET CASH FLOW FIROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 01,436,261 45,681 070~
NET INCREASEADECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 47,544,548 (506,131
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGIN NING OF YEAR 81,127,830 81,633,961
CASILAND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 128,672,378 §1,127,830
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Technieal University of Mombasa
Annual Report and Financial Statements
Tor the year ended June 30, 2023.

19. Notes to the Financial Statements

General Information

TUM is established by and derives its authority and accountability Universities Act and TUM
Charter. The University is whally owned by the Government of Kenya and is domiciled in
Kenya. The University's principal activity is teaching and rescarch.

Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

The Tinancinl satements have been prepared on & historical eost basis except for the
measurement at re-valued amounts of certain ftems of property, plant and equipment,
marketable securitics and financial instruments at fir value, impaired assets at their estimated
vecoverable amoants and actuarially determined liabilities at their prosent value. The
preparation of financial statements in conformity with international Public Sector Accounting
Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions, 1t also requires management
1o exercise judgement in the process ol applying TUM accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, of where ussumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial stalements, arc disclosed in Note 5 of these financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the
functional and roporting currency of the University.

The financial statements have been prepared [n accordance with the PFM Aat, the State
Corporations Act and International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) The
accounting policies adopted have been consistently applicd 1o all the years presented.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
d. Adoption of New and Revised Standards
L New and amended standardy and interpretations in issue effective fn the year ended 30

e 2023,

Standard Effective date and impact:

IPSAS 411 | Applicable: 1" January 2023;

Financial The ohjective of IPSAS 41 is to establish principles for the
Instruments financinl reporting of financial asscts and liabilities that will

present relevant and useful information 1o users aof financial
statements for thelr assessment of the amounts, timing and
uncertamty of the University's future cash flows.
IPSAS 41 provides users of financial statements with more useful
information than IPSAS 29, by
* Applying 2 single classification and measurement model
for financial assets that considers the characteristics of
the asset's cash flows and the objective for which the
usset is held,

* Applymng a single forward-looking expoclod credil Jous
model that is applicable 1 all fnancial instruments
subject (o impairment testing: and

* Applying an improved hedge necounting model that
broadens the hedging arrangements in scope of the
guidance. The model develops a strong link between
University's risk  management itrategies and  the
Accounting treatment for instruments held as part of the
risk management strategy.

IPSAS 42: Sogial Applicable: 1" January 2023

Benelits The abjective of this Standard is 1o improve the relevance, faithiul
representativeness and comparability of the information that a
reporting University provides in its financial statements about
social benefits. The information provided should help users of the
financial statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

—

7
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for the year ended Junc a0, 2023.
Standard Effective date and impact:

{a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the University.
(b) The key features of the operation of those socinl benefit
schemes; and
(¢) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Liniversity's
financial performance, financial position and cash flows,

Amendments 1o | Applicable: 1st January 2023:

ther IPSAS a) Amendments to IPSAS 3, to update the guidance related to
resulting Trom the components of borrowing costs which  were
IPSAS 41, inadvertently omitted when [PSAS 41 was issued.

Financial b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples
Instruments on hedging and credit risk which were inadventently

nmitted when [PSAS 41 was issued.

¢) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for
sccounting for financial guaranteed contracts which were
inadvestently omitted when IPSAS 41 waxs issued.

d) Amendments to IPSAS 33, 1o update the puidance on
classifying financial instruments on initial adoption of
accrual basis IPSAS which were inadvertemly omitted

when IPSAS 41 was issuod.
Other Applicable 1" January 2023
improvements 10 | s [PSAS 22 Disclosure of Fimancial Information about the
I'SAS General Government Sector. Amendments to refer 1o the latest

System of National Accounts (SNA 2008).

o IPSAS 39: Employee Benefits. Now deletes the term composite
social security benefits as it is no longer defined in IPSAS,

« IPSAS 29 Financial insiruments: Recognition and
Measurement, Standard no longer included in the 2023
IPSAS handbook as it is now superseded by [PSAS 41 which
is applicable from 1" January 2023,
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Notes to the Financial Sty tearents (Continued)

i New and amended standardy and interpretationy in Issie but mot yer effective i jhe

Year emded 30 June 2023

Standard Effective date and impact:
IPSAS 43 | dpplicable [* January 2025
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is lo ensure that
lessees and lessors provide relevant information in & manner that Faithfully
represents those transactions. This information gives a basis for users of
financial stsements 10 assess the effect that leases have on the financial
position, financial performance and cashflows of the Universaty.
The new standard requires entities to récognise, measure and present
information on right of usc assets and lease labilities,

IPSAS 44: | Applicable 1* Junuary 2025
Mon- Current | The Standard requires,
Assets Held | Assets that meot the criteria to be classified as held for sale 1o he measured
for Szlcand | at the lower of carrying amount ahd fair value less costs 10 sell and the
Discontinued | depreciation of such assst 10 cease and:

Operations Assets that meet the criteria 1o be classificd ss held for sale to be presented
separately in the statement of financial position and the results af
discontinued operations 1o be presented separately in the statement of
financial performance.

e = —_

Wi Eurly adoption of standards
The University did not early - adopt any new or amended stardards in the financial year



Technical University of Mombasa
Annual Report and Fisancial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2023,

Notey (o the financial statements {mnlln-u_md]
4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Revenue recognifion

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Fees, taxes and fines

TUM recognizes revenues from fees, taxes and fines when the event accurs and the asset
recognitian criterin are met, To the extent that there is  related condition attached that
would give rise 1o a liability to repay the amount, defierred income is recognized instead
of revenue. Other non-cxchange revenues are recognized when it is probable that the
future econamic benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the
University and the fair value of the asset can be measured relinbly.

Transfers from other government entitics

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured
at fair value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset {cash, goods, services and
property) if the transfer is free {rom conditions and it is probable that the economic
benefits or service potentinl related to the usset will flow to the University and can be
measured reliably, To the extent that there is a related condition attached that would give
vise 1o a liability to ropay the amount, the amount is recorded in the statément of Anancial
position and realised in the statement of financial performance over the useful life of the
assets that has boen acquired using such funds.

i) Revenue from exchange transactions

Rendering of services

TUM recognizes revenue from readering of services by reference (o the stage of
completion when thé outcame of the ransaction can be estimated reliably, The stage of
completion is measured by reference to labour hours incurred to date as o percentage of
total estimated labour hours. Where the contract outcome cannot be mensured reliably,
revenue is recognized only to the extent that the expenses ineurred are recovernble.
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Notes to the Financial Statements :‘E.‘.‘;'I'inndj =" o
Summary of Significant Accounting Poljcies (Continued)

b}

Sale of goods

Reverie from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant cisks and rowards af
ownership have been transferred 1o the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and whan the
amount of revenue can be measured relishly, and it is probable that the economic benefit
or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Lniversity,

Dividends
Dividends or similar distributions must be recognized when the sharcholder's or the
University's right to receive payments is estublished,

Rental income
Rental income arising from operting leases on investment properties is acosunted for on g
straight-line basis over the lease termis angd included in revenue.

Budget information

The original budger fior the Current FY was approved by the National Aszombly on Jupe
2022. Subsequent revisions or additional approprintions were made to the approved budger
i accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additkonal
appropriations are added 1o the original budget by the University upon receiving: the
respective approvals in order 1o conclude the final budger, Accordingly, the University did
not recorded any additional appropriations on the 2022/2023 budger,

I
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Notes 1o the Finuncial Stutements (Continued)
Saummury of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Budget information (continued)

‘The University's budget is prepared on a different hasis o the actual income and expenditure
disciosed in the financial statements. The financial stalemenis are prepared on accrual basis using
1 elussification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance, whereas
the budget is prepared on & cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were recast from
the neerual basis 1o the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the
approved budget. A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepired on & comparabli basis to
the approved budget, is then presented in {he statement of comparison of budget and actual
amoitints: Tn addition 1o the Basis difference, adjustments 1o amounis in the financial statements
are also made for differences in the formats and clussification schemes adopted for the presentation
of the finaricial statements end the approved budget, A statement 1o reconcile the actual pmounts
on & comparable basis included in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts and
ihe actuals as per the statement of financial performance has becn presented under scetion |8 of
these linancial statements.

¢) Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax asscts and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected
i be recovered from ar paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rales and tax laws used 10 compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enncted, at the reporting date in the arca
whare the University operates and gencrates tnxahle income. Current income tax relating to items
recognized directly in net assets is recognized in net assets and not in the statement of financial
performance. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respeet 1o
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject 1o interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriste

12
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

interests in joint veniures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporiry differences can e
controlled and it is probable that the lemporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred fux 455els are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses, D:rmduxmmmmimdm the
cxlent that it is probable that taxable profit will pe available against which the deductible
lemporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losscs can be
utilized, except in respest of deductible emporary differences associnted with investments in
controfled entities, associates and interests in joing ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized
only o the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foresccable
ﬁllurnmﬁ taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized,
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets s reviewed ot each reparting date and reduced 1o the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow 4l or
part of the deferred tax asset §g be utilized. Unrecognized deforred tax assets are re-nssessed af
each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that futyre taxable
profits will allow the deferred lax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and linbilitics are
measured ot the tax rates that are expecied to apply in the year when the assey js realized or the
liability is seitled, based on lax rates (and tax laws) that have been caacled or substantively enacted
al the reporting date. Doferred tax relating 1o jlems recognized outside surplus or deficit s
recognized outside surplis sr defieip Deferred tax items arc recognized in correlation o the
underlying transaction in net assets. Deferred tax assets and do ferred tax lisbilitics are olfset il a
legally enforceablo right exists to set off CuTent ik assels against eurrent incame tux liabilities
and the deferred taxes relate 1o the same taxable University and the same taxation authority.

13
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policics (Continued)

i)

Sales tax

Expenses and assets are recagnized net of the smount of sales tux, except!

il When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets o services is not recoverable from
the taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax 15 recognized as part of the cost of
sequisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

ii) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included
The net amount o sales tax recoverable from, or payable 1o, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables o payables in the statement of financial position.

luvestment property

Investment properties are measured initinlly at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying
amount includes the replacement cosl of components of an existing investment property at
the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-
to-dity maintenance of an investment property, Investment property acquired through a non-
exchange transaction is measured al its fuir value at the date of acquisition. Subsequent 10
inktinl recognition, investment propertics are measured using the cost model and are
depreciated over a 30-year period Investment propertics are derecognized cither when they
have been disposed of or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no fulure cconomic benefit of service potential is expected from its disposal. The
difference between the net disposal procceds and the carrying amount af the asset is
recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period of de-recognition. Transfers are mada o or
from investment property only when there isa change in use.

14
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

¢l Property, plant and efqquipment
All property, plant and equipment are siated ap cost less accumulated depreciation angd

the items. When significant parts of Property, plant and equipment arc required to be replaced
al intervals, the University recognizes such parts as individual assets witl specific useful lives
and depreciates (hem accordingly, Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost
i recognized In the carrying amount of the plant and Cquipment 5 a replacement if the
recognition eriterin are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in
surplus or deficit as incurred, Whers an assed is acquired in g non-exchange transaction for il
or nominal consideration the asser is initially measured at its fuir value,

The depreciation rates are as below,
ASSETS RATES,
Building 2%
Furniture 10%
Computer 30%

Plant & Equip  10%
Motor Vehicle 20%

N Leases

Finance leases are leasos that transfer substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental 1o
ownership of the leased jtem 1o the University, Assets held under a finance lcase are
capitalized at the rommencement of the lease a1 the fair value of the leased property or, |
lower, at the present value or the future minimum lease payments. The University also
recognizes the associated Jease Hiability at the inception of the lease, The liability recopnized
15 measured as the present value of the future minimum lease payments at initial FEOOERItion,
subscquent o initial recognliion, lease Payments are apportioned between finance charpes

balance of the liability. Finance charges dre recognized as finance costs in surplus or def; i
An ssset held under & finanes lense is depreciated over the usefil life of the assel However,
if'there is no reasonable certainty that the Liniversity will obtain ownership of the asset by the
end of the lease term, the asser is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful fife of

the asset and the Jense terim,
15
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Operating leases are leases that do not wransfer substantially all the risks and benefits

incidentul to ownership of the leased itom 1o the University. Operating lease payments are

recognized ns an operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease

berm.

gl lntangible assets

Intangible assets acquired scparately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a non-exchange wansaction is their fair vatue at the date of the exchange.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets arc carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and sccumulated impairment losses. internally generated intengible assels,
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in
surplus or deficit in the period in whiich the expenditure is incurred. The useful life of the
intangible assets is asscssed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible asscts with an indefinite
uselul Tife are assessed for impairment al each reporting date,

h) Research and development costs
The University cxpenscs rescarch costs as incurred, Development coits on an individual
project arc recognized as intangible ussets when the University can demonstrate:

i) The technical feasibility of completing the asset so that the ausel will be available

for wse or sale.

i} Its intention to complete and ity ability 1o use or sell the asset.

i) How the asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential

iv) The availability of resources 1o complete the asset.

v)  Theability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.
Following initial recognition of an asset, the assel is carried a1 cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impaimment losses. Amortization of the asset beging when
development is complete, and the assel is available for use, 1t is amortized over the period
ol expected Tuture benefit. During the period of development, the assel B tested for
impairment annually with any impairment losses recognized immediately in swplus of
defioit.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) D
Summary of Significant Aceon nting Policics (Contin el )

i} Financial instruments
IPSAS 41 addresses the classification, measurement and de-recognition of financial assels wind

Any contract that gives rise to a financigl asset of one University and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another University. At initial recagaition, the University measures o financial ssset
or financial lability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial
linbility not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs that are directly attributabe
to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liabiliry,

a) Financial assets

Classification of finanecial assets

of the financial asset. A financial assel is measured at amortized cosi when the financial asset is
held within a management maodel whose objective is 1o hold financial assets in order to collect
W cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding, A
financial ssset is measured at fair value through net nssets/ equity if it is held within the
anagement model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cashflows wnd
sclling financial assets and the Contractual terms of the Mnancial asset gIve rise on specified daies
o cush flows thm are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amouni
outstanding. A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through surplus or deficit unless it js
measured at amontized cost or fair value through net assers/ equity unless the University his made
irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular in vestments in equity instruments.
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Nates (o the Financial Statements (Contin ued )
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Subsequent measurement

Bused on the business model und the cash flow chamcieristics, the University classifies its
financial assets into amortized cost or fair value categorics for financial instruments. Movements
- fair value are presented in either surplus or deficit or throdgh net ssets/ equity subject 1o certain
criteria being met.

Amaortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash fows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not designated at fair value through
curplus or defieit, are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instrument that is
subsequently measured at amortized cost and is ot part af a hedging relationship is recopnized in
profit or loss when the asset is do-recognized or impaired. Interest incame from these financial
assets {4 included in Minance income using the efTective interest rate method.

Fair value through nel asscts/ equity

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and inferest, arc
mensared ot fuir value through net assets/ equity. Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through net assets, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue anel
forcign exchange gains and losses which sre recognized in surplus/deficit. Interest income from
these financinl assets is included in finance income using the effective interest ralc method.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized at fair values less allowances for any uncollectible
amaounts, Trade and other reccivables are assessed for impairment on @ continuing basis. An
cstimate is made of doubtful receivables based on & review of all cutstanding amounts af the year

enl,
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Nates to the Financial Statcments (Continued) - '
Summary of Significan Accounfing Policies (Continued)

Fair value through surplus ar deficit
Financial assets thar do niog meet the eriteria for amortized cost or fair value through ne assely/

5ot oul in Mote xx
b} Financial liabilities

Classification
The University classifies jis liabilities ag subsequently measurid ay amortized cost except for
linancial liahilities measured through profit or loss.

I} Inventories

through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for anominal cost), the cast of the inveniory is
its fair value ot the date of acquisition, Costs incurred in bringing each product 1o jis present
location and conditiane are accounied for, as follows:
1) Raw materials: purchase comt using the weighted averige cost method,
i1} Finished goods ang workl in progress: cosg of dircet materials and labour and g prapartion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing
Cosis,
Alter initial recognition, inventory is messured af the lower of cost and nes realizable value,
However, 1o the extent that o class of imventary s distributed or deployed at no charge or for a
nominal charge, that class of Inventory is messured at the lower of cost and curren replacement
cost. Net realizable value is ihe estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, loss
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated COSts necessary to make the sale, exchanpe,
or distribution. Inventories are recopnized as an expense when deployed for utilization or
cansumption in the ordinary course of operations of the University,
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Notes to the Financial Statements {(Continued)
Summary of Significant Accou nting Policies (Continued)

k) Provisions

Provistons are recognized when the University has a present obligation (legal or constructive] as
& resiult of a past event, it is probable that an sutfiow of resources embodying economic benefits
or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a relisble estimate can be made of
the amount of the obiigation. Where the University expects some or all of & provision i be
eimbursed, for example, under an insurmnce contract, thee reimburscment i recognized as @
separale assel only when the reimbursement s virtually cerain. The cxpense relating to uny
provision is presented int the statement of financial performance net of any reimbursement.

1} Social Benefits

cacidl benefits are cash transfers provided 1o i) specific individuals and [ or houscholds that meet
the eligibility criteria, ii) mitigate the effects of social risks and iii) Address the need of seciely as
a whole. The University recognises & social benefit 83 an eRpanse for this social benefit scheme ol
e same time that it recognises a lability, The Hability for the social benefit scheme is mensured
a1 the best estimate of the cost (the eocial benefil payments) that the University will meur in
fulfilling the present obligations represented by the liability.

m)Contingent labilitics

The University does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses detils of any contingencies
ins the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of rgsources embodying
ecanomic benefits o service potential is remote.

n) Contingent asseis

The University does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details of a possible asset whose
existence is contingent of the OCCUFTENCE Or NON-DCCUTTENCE of one or more uncertuin future cvents
niot wholly within the control of the University in the notes o the financial statements. Contingent
qssels are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the
financial statements, 11 it has become virtually certain that an inflow af economic benefiis or
service potential will arise and the assel’s value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related
rovene are recognized in the financial stalements of the period in which the change oocurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continucd)

o) Nature and Purpose of reserves
The University ereates and maintains reserves in torms of specific requirements.

P) Changes in necoun ting policies and estimaies

The University recognizes the effects of changes in sccounting policy retrospectively. The effecs
of changes in uccounting policy are applied prospectively | relraspective. application s
impractical,

A Employee benefits

Retiremenit benefit plany

The University provides retirement benefits for it employees and Council, Defined contribution
plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the University pays fixed contributions into
A separate University (a fund), and will have no legal or constructive obligation ta pay further
contributions if the fiund does not hold sufficient Basets 1o pay all employee benefits relating 1o
enployee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the
payment of retirement benefiis wre charged apains income in the year in which they become
payable. Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined-contribution
plans. The defined benefit finds are actoarially valued tre-anmually on (he projecied unit credis
method basis. Deficits identified are necovered through fump sum payments or increased finyre
contributions on proportional basis 1w al| participating employvers, The contributions and lump sum
payments reduce the past-emplayment benefit obligation.

ri Foreign currency transactions

date of the transnotion. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in loreign currency are reported
the statement of fingneial position reparting date by applying the exchange rale on that date,
Exchanpe differences arising from the settlement of creditors, or from (he reporting of creditors at
rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized
a5 income or expenses in the period in which they arise.
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Motes 10 thﬂ'ﬁ“n:hl Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

5) Borrowing cosis

Horrowing costs are capitalized against qualifying asscts as part of property, plant and equipment.
Such borrowing costs arc capitalized over the period during which the asset is being acquired or
constructed and borrowings have been inciirred. Capitalization ceases when construction of the
asset is complete. Further bormowing costs are charged 1o the statement of financial performance.

1) Related partics

The University rogards o related party as a person of the University with the ability to exert control
individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the University, or vice versi.
Members of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise the Council members,
the Viee Chancellor and scnior managess,

4} Service concession arrangements

The University analyses all sspects of service concession arranpements that it enters into in
determining the appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In particular,
where 4 private party contribules an assel to the arrangement, the University recognizes that assel
whon, and only when, it controls or regulates the services the operator must provide together with
the aesel, 1o whom it must provide them, and st what price.

Ini the case of assets other than "whole-of-lifi" assets, it controls, through owaership, beneficial
entitlement or otharwise — any significant residual interest in the asset ot the end af the
arrangement, Any assets 5o recognized are measured at their fair value. To the extent thal an assel
has been recognized, the University also recognizes a corresponding liahility, adjusted by o cash
cansideration paid or received.
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'Huru to the Financial Etntnmmt:_['f,‘;ﬁnuad]
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
¥} Cash and cagh equivalents

Bank aceoyn balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenys and u Virious
commercinl banks at the end of the financial year, For the purposes of these financial statements,
cash and cash equivalents also nclude short term eagh imprests and advances 1o authorised public
officers and/for | nstitutions which were not surrendered or sccounted for at the end of the financial
year.

w) Comparative fligures
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

5, Sipoificant Judgments and Sourees of Estimation Uncertuinty
The preparation of the Liniversiy’s financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires
management 10 make judgments, estimales and assumptions that affect the reporled amounts of
pevenues, expenses, assets and labilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of
the reporting period. However, unceriainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
autcomes that require a material adjustment 1o the carrying amount of the ssset or liabitity affected
in future periods. State all judgements, cstimates and assumptions made:

Estimates and nssumptions,

The key assuimplions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty al the
reporting date, that have 8 significant risk of causing a materinl adjustment 10 the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The University based
ite assumptions and estimates on parsmeters available when the consolidated finuncial statements
were prepared, However, existing clroumstances and assumptions about future developments may
change due to market changes or clreumstances arising beyond the control of the University, Such
changes are reflecied in the assumptions when they oceur. IPSAS 1.140

Useful lives and residual value
The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicatars to inform
potential funre uxe and valug from disposal:

a) The condition of the asset hased on the assessment of experts employed by the University.

b} The nature of the assel, its susceptibility and adaptability 1o changes in technology and

PHOCEsSses.

¢} The nature of the processes in which the akset is deployed.

d) Availability of funding to replace the asset.

¢) Changes in the market in relation to the nsscl
Provisions
Provisions were miscd and management determined an estimate based on the information
avallable. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note 40.

Provisions arc measured at the management’s besi estimate of the expenditure required 1o settle
the obligation at the r:pnningdnt:andmd'mmunlwd o present value where the effect is material,
The University provides for bad debts and they are cstimated with repards to the period in which
they have been outstanding as explained in mote 16.
24
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. GOK Grants

Transfers from State Department of University Edueation
Description 2022-2023 2021-2022 |
Month KShs KShs
July 2022 80,195,660 T9.867. 765
Avgust 2023 B,195, 660 79.867, 763
Septernber 2022 B0, 195,559 9,867,765
October 2022 80,195,664 79867, 765
Niweniber 2022 &0, 195,660 9,867 765
December 2022 80,195,390 79867, 765
Junuary 2027 £0,195 460 79,867,763
February 202 N8, 195 660 9,857,763
Murch 2023 B0, 195,755 THENT, TRS
April 2027 80,155 64| 79,667,765
May 26127 E0,193 661 B1.656,39]
June 2023 H0, 193,605 | K1 656,392
TOTALS FHL.347 916 LR EE]

T Other Incomes
Deseription 2022-2023 2021-2022 |

KShs KShs

| Registration Fee 22,386,562 23,479 084

| Lnternl Fxnminationy 122,088,740 122,073 053
Sparts Levy 20,710,750 29,954,250
Library Lovy 20960415 0457343
Libeary Fines Central Vote I52 974 ﬂ_1
Medicnl Levy 44,764,425 46,273,459
lncdustrial Attachment eyy 15,342,000 17291 500
ICT Levy T,619,375 74,570,375 |
Academic Transoripts Contral Vote 351,500 423,733
Students hastol fee 16,766,490 14.832.470
Apphicution i e LTI4.780 1,438,500
Project Fee Contral Vote 2,149,300 2455900
Student Readmission Fee Ceniral Viole 1] 9,192

_l,'_.m lems Cenlral Ve 413,700 192 450
Crradaailon Fec 16447, (00 22070, 800
Conter Foes Central Vole A28 200 ii
Penaliies Canteal Viode $83,400 i
Muterials Testing Central Vo FL500 1K1 400
Change of Course 139,500 171,300 |
Froject Field Work 5 000 40, 000
Troining Restaurant Tncome Tnhﬂﬂ Feslaieranl 192,178 250,880
Consultincy Foe Central Vote i V2405 |
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Administrutive Research Income Central Vate 293206 49,500
Student 10 Camtral Yote 4,070,000 4 THA,0U0
satirial Development Ceniral Vote 10,000 3,000
Theslz Examiintion Central Vole 455,100 2.168.450
Praciical/Laborstory workahops Central Viote 69,400 07,000
Hire of Basilities Central Vole 1,329,830 LI3AN2
Hire of Transpori 1,476,040 1,235,900
Photacopy & bindery Income Libriry 2300 #9736
CIsCD Af,000 i
Rt lacome Central Vioke 1.961,156 2,937,503
SunlT Reni Income Central Yoo 452,000 531,500
S1afT training levy Contral Vate 2,469 452 1,438,239
Itereat an Lrvestment Central Vote 14,785 12036
Foreign Exchange Gisinflow Central Vote 4,277.853 i
imrnmuwummwvm b694 194,233
Tendering Fees Central Vote 0 2,500
Adeinintrative Fees Central Vole 976,587 B14,034
Internet Services Central Yote 634,000 393,500
Miseellaneots Income 8,009,051 TRES14
Medical Services a 1,008,556
Fesith Linii 434,490 0
Dionatan Grants Income 160,000 40,000
Seminar Levy 60, L0 245,000
TOTAL A5, 05,574 410,151,798

Explanajory note

Tite reduetion wens sitrbuied by ihe devieans ba geraduntion fru due b b grodusnis in the euron. year.

8. Tuition Fees
Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

K5hs KShs

‘Tultion Foe Rigular Central Vet 125,459 950 L2k, 607, 196

| Tultion Fee Module 11 Central Vote 455317 ALR A5E.500,178
TOTAL SR 977 408 S 156,374




Technical University of Mombasa
Annual Report and Financial Statements

for the year ended June 30, 2023,

Nates to the Financial Statements (Continued) -
9. Personnel Emoluments
Description 2022-2023 | 2021-2022

B KShs KShs

Basic Sabaries Central Vote 656,173,657 GK, 164, 190
House Allvwiance Central Vote 255 544,174 258,556,592
Medical Insurance Central Vote TRA14,123 217N
Pension Emplayers Expense Central Vore 122,21 629 117,524,745
NESF Employer's Expense Central Voo 4,001,640 1A97.600
Group Life Central Voto 9369,112 1,043,009
Respansibility Allowance Central Vo 15,959 04 9,145,340
Hu'r-FrldHﬂ Allowanes Central Vaio 1,500, 000 GO0, 000
Professorial Allowanes Central Vit 15500, 00 1, B0 k0

| Tekephone Allowsnce Central Vaie RO20,318 7,793,152
Acting Allowance Central Vote 282,538 ]
Management Allowance Central Vate 3,096,481 3075334
Book and Research Allowance Central Viote 4,544 000 4,496 000
Grsuities Centianl Vote 44,847,002 a0, 14
Leave Allowsnce Ceniral Vote #,264,800 8616450
Enmmmin!_ﬁHm Central Voie 37009 815 JBSRTIT

Car Allowiinee Ceniral Voie 43240092 43,774 291
Enterainsent Allowance Central Vate 1,272,506 10,866,064
Passagre and Baggage Allowance Centrul Ve 11,533 4| 0ay
Domestic Workers Allowance Central Vote 1,320,000 I, 320,000
Risk Allowance Cential Ve 595 300) 604,852
Extrancous Allowance Centrul Ve J446,113 2904, 129
Hendship Allowsnce 653,400 S98.400 |
Part time Teacking 128,178,086 116,762,579
Transfer Allowanee Central Viole 124,616 il
TOTAL 1,476,593 601 1461325 569

10, Council Expenses

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

KShs KShs

Chatrmun/Directors” Honoraria 1,021,549 108,501
Euinn Adiowances 3,206,000 2,500,000
Induetion und Training 40,000 160,000
Truvel and Accommedation 6,485,905 4,445,900
Other Allowanees &27,200 1,202,030
Totnl PLITR. 754 mﬂil-_l
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Explunplory note

Dtk prior year the University did not have chairman of the council and the council was not fully

censtituted.

11, Administration/Operating Expenscs
Description 20122-2023 2021-2022

KShs KShs

Cosunl wages bE1, 216 50,300
Travel snd Subsisience 13,624 911 5,630,287
Fuel and nils 4,795,285 3,723,000
Nnintenance of Vehicles Transport 1,614,480 1,646, 6
fiverseas Travel Central Vole 144,672 0
Office Stationary 4,140,129 3,700.627
Photocopying i 99,436
Compuler Stitinnery 6,547,704 4,563,140
Advertising ond Publicity 2462610 2412401
Printing and Publishing X 40000
Mewapapers 251,420 146,620
Shiws end Exhibltions Research 738,046 471,587
Open Duy Rescarch 46,500 91,500
Elecirieity 20,281 244 19,675,015

| Water and Contervaney 75,190 923,150
Cirnduntion Expenses Central Vote 0,429,872 4,004,430
Oificisl Enteriatnmeni 55,150 09850
Expenyes of Doards and Commitiecs E.770 160 £ 100,329
Stafl Devilopment and Training Central Vite 1,325,154 707,292
Stafl Wellare Contral Vobe | B, L0 | 10,000
SulT Dependants Bursary Scherne Central Vole 1,655431 |, 325,047
COVID 19 Experss Central Voie n 124,500
Clenning Materialy 1,375,159 1.303,204
Fumigntion & Wastc Collection Services Accommadatian 18,380 45,000
Purchase of Gas and frvweod 00, AKD 49,4600
Purchase of Utensils beddings & fittings 159 280 127,950
Purchase ol foodstiaiTa 1,364,908 i, 130484
Vehicle Licenscs and Inspection Transpoa 248,770 200, LD
Velicle Insurnce Trarspon |, 093,453 | 003,154
Giereral Insurance Central Vote 1,862 862 1412430
Dunk Charges 638247 625,100

Payment of Rent ant Ratex 629,760 686960

| SeafT Liniforms A4 730 429,040
In e Coapacity Building Human Resource 1,521,660 1,197,489
Ciovermnmeg 3824, 740 1, 706550
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Subscription Fee 535,045 2,676,150 |
Professional Services Central Vade - 4,196,880 1,262 530
Hire of Security Services 12931370 13135400
Hire of Cleaning Services Central Vole 21,999,996 19,932,004
Funcral Expenses Contral Viote B50,201 2,000
CSR Donationy Central Vode 52,500 i
Postul und Courler Serviges B 1,124 590,068
Telephone Expenses Central Vioee T1ITH 19800
Palicy Review 0 8,000
| Supervision ard Thesis examination Sehacl of post graduate 1818,400 £0,000
Stratepic Plan | 246,500 932, 150
Court Decress 63813 270,000
Tum TVET Institute 2,790 600 1,629,568
TOTAL 139,708,755 109,478,250
Explanatory note

The increase was due 1o Increased operations afier resumption fram COVID-19 restrictions among them

H“F Incroase in travel anid subsistence due to nersased supervision of students on attachmeny,

- Increass of Electricity bill due o Fully of studants,
Professional charyes rolated to settling of legal fess for court cages that were concluded in the yuar
2022/ 2023,
11 Teaching Expenses
Deseription 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs

Vibrary Expenses Libeary 1,987,594 3,395,643
Purchasc of Toathing Materials 1,428,531 3245810

| Open Distasice Learniing ODEL Contral Vote 741,600 |, 286,220
Currleulum ang Brevelopment 1#4,000 170,900
Mainlenance Computer Hardware snd Neiworks 88,580 T3 4K
bernet Charges Direvtorate of [TCS 1,237,038 1541842
Muistensnce Computer Software Direciorate of TS 4,500 645 5979150
Internal Rescarch Expenses Reseirch B.377.540 ﬁ.ll'.l?.l:lll?_
Exumination Materials Reghstrur AA 6.356,600 6,264, 2R
Extemal Examiners 4,895 79§ £,333 000
Consulancy Expenses 6225431 9,652 107
IS0 Cortification |.007,691 1,706,394 |
Publications and Conferences Research 1.4935,262 1320018
Accrediiation Central Voge 3,599 467 1,600,000
Inchustrial Altachment Experises &, 740,650 5.999 140
TOTAL 5%, 156,463 59,614,145
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13, Student Welfares Expenses

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KS5hs

[ carcor Services 161, 04K) i
Giuldance and Counselling Dean OF Students 355,580 151,360 |
Sports Activities Dean OF Studeris 5,067,500 1,192,050
Meiiical Expenses Clinic { Medical 1,529,593 3,264,551
Student Work stidy Programme 373,961 W36
pizsic-and Drama Dean o Stadents 1,354,100 il

| PO AL 10,582,004 7006777

Explazializy nole

mmwuqmwmwmwmm&mﬁﬂﬁulﬂnrMH fully resumed

from lang holidays and Tifting of COVID-9 restrictions.

14. Repairs and Maintenance

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs
Rapairs urd Maintienance 906,527 3338982
Muintenance of Buildings and Sutioas 3916691 a0,803,213
Maknienance of Sewerage TH3,00K) HRA, 000
TOTAL 43,606,218 45,027,095
15. Audit fees
Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs
Audit foes Contral Vote 1,400,000 1,400,200
TOTAL 1,400,000 1,400,000
16, Provision for Bad debts
Description 2212022 202372023
Description KShs KShs
Pt 0% -12Menthe@25% | OverlYeuriml) 30% | Over 2 earsifl) 1 00%:
Gineral trade Receivables 838,477.00 : = =
 Deposit Contingenicy T4 00010 - - TL5,/00 00
Guest house sccommuodation )
detnine 7,182, 107,00 —_ 1.142.107.00
Sialf modical debiors 120, 776,00 : - 120, 776.00
EinfT selary ndvancin 141,120 060 1|, 2000
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17. Bad debts Written off

Annual Report and Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2023,
TUMEL debioey - 600,000,00 s -]
Student deblors 3,274 70100 22161, 72601 - 47,204,056 00
Oher Deblors 10,444,514.00 = :
TIVET Bursaries MOHEST 96,511 00 . .
Commercial rent receivable 157805300 E
Sulury recovery roceivable F 7540, 446,00 = =
TOTAL MTTSETN0 | 3 et e o1 - 55,463,059,00
Provision for bad debis BITSSTIR | 55 pa0a3isg E 55,463,059,00 |
Total provisions I8R5 50 s - 111,153,490, 50
BALANCE i/ 36.253,438.50 : . 38,775,572.00
IncrenseMecrense in peovision 12,522 13400 . . T2.377,918.50
BALANCE G/ 3,775,572 50 . | masyseso
Exgl I

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

- KShs KShs

Nad debls Writien off 0 501900
TOTAL o S01,900

18. Departmental Inventorics

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

KShs KShs

laveniories Estates & projoct platining 6,316,670 3,680,890
Inventocien Hospitality & Taurism 41,439 142,179
Ivewmiicies Mechanieal Enghnieriog 944,150 R,311,510
Inventories Mealth Ui 1,392 703 l.iﬁ:l..lﬂd
Invenlaries Administration 12,429,949 529,804
lnventaries Electrical Engincering 150,900 143,740
Inventories Applied & Health Scionce B4S, 130 2,380 90
Inventarics Mediol Engineering depurtiment $32.000 366,790
Inventoeles Libeary departinent 29,264,853 2,761,451
Imventories Hhﬂdifgtﬂﬂl Eulilwli.n! 17,500 148 550
Tnyentarics Liboral Studies departmunt 37,992 13,888
laventories Kwale Cimpus 135387 142722
liveniories Lamu Carpis B2.ER3 1R800
Inventorias Reghoy 2335,400 1003 004
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[aventories Student services 2,688,751 1436320
Inventorics Tranaporn & I.ﬂguln E LA ] Iilﬁs.ll_!
{nventories Dean School of busines S8.218 §i408
inventories Dean School of Humanities 19,000 250474
Ipwentovies Manegemend Scicnce 10,5 16801
| Inveniories Modical Sclence Department 332,036 1,010,650
inventories Communication Department 8,058 55,301
l’l_‘ﬂ‘f-'-l.- 8,506,614 701,999
19, Recpivable from exchange transactions
Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs
Prepuid |nsursnces i, 39,210 i}
Dieposit Confingeney 725 0 24000
Genersl Trade roceivabibes 01 RIRATY
Student Debiory 4338 638670 363,283,501
TIVET Bumaries MOHEST A96.531 B, 551
Olueal Accommodition Deblors 7.1 8107 7082007
TUMEL DERTORS 00,000 00,000
Commercial Rent Receivable 4921013 1,478,050
jﬂﬂ"ﬂaﬁlmt Debiars 120,776 20,776
Sakary Recovery Recelvable |, 750, 446 I, 754,446
‘E_ﬁn'hlllj' Advances 141,120 14030
Renl Arrears [ i L, a0y
LESS PROVISION (111,133,491) [(38,775.572)
TOTAL 280,566,185 339,334,239
20. Receivable from non-exchange transactions
Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShe
Stalf fmprest 4,025,144 7363807
Other Debiory Receivabie 1230 E 14 104, 314
TOTAL 16,324,958 17408821 |
aplonatory note
The incresse an pther debitors relate (0 the siudents spansared by 'TVET which the tsition fioes T yet to ho scithed,
7. Cash and Bank Balances
Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs
freity Covih Fioad | | A8.000 234,000
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Pesty Cish Float 1 59,700 234,500 |
CASH BALANCES 247,700 462,560
_Euhltﬂmkﬂﬂinnuﬂnkﬁmmmm-nl 1816618 o
Cash ot Bank Nutions! Bank Current Aceount || 13614241 1
Cash at Dank Co-operstive Bank Fees Coliection Accoum .02, 180 2,313 443

_Mnﬂmshdudﬂhmﬂmtfmtuﬂmﬁmﬁu 13,628 112 13,809, 502
mummmmmcm 2,128,805 100331
Cash st Rank Family Bank Resenrch A/C 6781 886 1,460,764
Caih at bank Kiziwi Guest House 698,657 260,155
Cash at bank Equity Fees Collection aic 4823390 3,282,044
Cash i bank Development A/C Srundurd Chartered 3,298 204 [F
Cnsh at bank NBK Saluries Arc 13,328, 527 16,853,948
Cash at bank NRK fees collection ale 6,200, 668 13,997,003
Cash nt baisk Cash in hand KCB Fees Caflection A/C 0,648,048 1,169,903
Cash at bank Absa Feex Collection A/C 234,170 3,137,099 |
Cosh at bank GULF AFRICAN BANK AIC ND. 1700004 101 602 606 3,144 168
Cash nt bank Family Bank Research LISD 096000040196 A 29,721,720 482,774 |
BANK BALANCES £29,450,3 85,049,153
TOTAL 119,738, 85,511,713

| CASHBOOK OVERDRAFT ]
mumwmwnmr 1] (356,004 )
Cash 0t Bank Mationgl Bank Current Agcound 11 i) K313, 793
Euhuhnuﬂmﬂnmmmmmmmmm [i] (214.006)

TOTAL 0 (4,383, 583) |
TOTAL CASH AND CASI EQUIVALENTS 129,728,006 81127830 |

22, Investments

[ Description 20222023 20212022 |

KShs KShs i

Shares in Consolidated Bank 5.000,000 E.M.IM!}_.
TOTAL 10,571,938 10,571,938 |

23. Trade and other payables

'Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

KShs KShs

General Trude Payabies 18,272,306 35,002,034
TOTAL F8.172, 326 33,002,035

i3
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

24, Other Creditors

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs
Description 2021-2022 2020-2021
KShs KShs
Shil| Kenya conditional geant [/ 904,203
Masie Salary CBA Arrears 1,733,101 2,006,213
PAYE Deductiont i 58,709,080
Income Tax Withholding 1,932,684 B80.792
VAT Clearing 302,756 147,419
Student Uinion Fee 14,109,189 14,454 468
Student Nenevolent Fund 2,97H,663 2,891,912
“Averued Payables 103,827,208 11,023,597
KUCCPS Levy AT5 475 HG8,973
CUE Levy | 817375 1613374
Alumnl Ansociation EINT,T12 5,088,906
Dok Feo 0 R, B
Alliange Franeaise Tuition fre 1] The 097
Project Reoview oo 385,282 324,735
VAT Rent Output 142,176 110,984
Stafl Rent Clearing 190,125 1]
TVET Instititions f 14,240,670
Jumulyas e county Zo Pwand o ETL.929
Esternal Research 4,847,882 20,003,903
HELB 0 1
CDF i 2,500
Multidisciplinary Confirence 715,000 L
STOW Marine 392,750 i
Oibier Depoditon 15,000 o
LAPSSET refunds 750,000 750,000
termnl Examinations - KMTLB 20,000 0
Externial Examinations — KNGC 125,900 1,964,110
Refund te General Deblors 0 500
Pengion Deductions/Contritutinns 1,305 821 6,548 805
NSSF Piyables o 550 |
WHIF Payables o 2,500
Poly Sacon 0 1,158 440
Sualt Benevolent Fund 0 §5.949
| Trade Unlona Paysbles 1 (EHE)
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Ovher Puyubles a 2,992 nge
Retentions Payable TAGS.96% 7310616
Welfure Payables TUM FINANCE WELFARED o 1,951,450 |
Insurance Payables British American Insunence ] 17,014
Insurunoe Puyables Biue Shield Insurunes n 24000
Insuirsnce Payables CFC Life Insuirance i] 30,200
Insuranee Payables Madison [nsmanes 1 0006003 100,000
Inaurmnce Payables ICEA i 2.0k}
Insurance Payables Pan Africa Life Assurince it 12,674 |
Insurance Payables Corporate Insuraee Company 0 9.013
Tuum Puybles Kenindia 1] 1,500
1mﬁnh|‘uUM'hmlrleLﬂ i} 5717
Insurance Payabies Th Monarch lnsursnes 0 17,335
Fl-m Payables CIC GROLI i 4,500
Muwalimu SACCO 0 1661 048
 Kitul Toachers SACCO 0 60,990
KEMFRI SACCO 0 17,800
Kilifi Teschers Succo i} 265,813
Loun Paysbles KCR 0 £,294 400
Loan Fayables NBK i} 41,0335
Lioan Payables Co-opertive Bank 0 [
Laan Payables Family Bank tn 0
o Paysbles Milimani Commercial Coun 113,786 63,906
Lown Payables Bank of Africs i Lii. s
Loan Payables Fauly Kenya [ 1,023,756
Loan Payables Seleot Management Services Lid a 69,038
l-oan Paynbles Commervial Bark of A ftica 0 40,576
Stima SACCO ] 14631732
Ukaguzi SACCO. 0 38,701
Macico Co-op Savings & Credit %E:i:t_\r ) i 008
mmmﬂmlﬁm_ﬂmmm:ud ] 104,350
et Pay 2419579 2,339, )il
Kivuko Saceo i} 45 2013
CBA Pension Employers Lunbdlity 366,277 166377
Proviston far Audit Foes 1,400, 0 2,800,000
Insusance Claims Payable 124,000 o
Salary Advance Refund 0 178,675
Foat Bank Shares o Fixr
Heil control /e 8462794 10,425,595
CDF control ak: 5497534 L5552
[ Bporcsons eonfeol wo 11, 166,368 4,426,485




Technical University of Mombasa

Annual Report and Financial Statements

for the year ended June 30, 2023,

Liberty |nsptance payables 1] 6,590
School based control alc 500,607 6,453,582
Student Fee Clearing afc 137,511 49,311
imprest Rpcavery Clearing alo 1 197,804
Plan Internutional comtrol wic §,198,537 12,492,997
FARTICIP G2 Sponsors m 0
Uincinimed Funds Eguity Renk 979,561 998,561
Unclalened FPunds KCD Fee Dank 917,653 1,301,683
Unclaimed Funds NBK Fee Bank 1,023,144 1,000,144
Unclaimed Funds Coop Bank 956,919 56,919
Unelgined Funds Atsa Bank 193,574 47,009
Uncinimed Funds Stanchort Bark 207,120 297,120
_TOTAL 234,046,669 334,634,053
25, Long Term Liabilities
Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs
Students Caution Money 37207178 34,970,671
Long term Service Gratuity 747,264 6,586,107
TOTAL 37084, 006 41,961,785
26, Capital Fund
Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs.
wF 3,427, 167953 142716795
MOVEMENTE 0 0
| CiF 3ALTN6T953 3427067953
27, Other Funds and Reserves
| Pescription 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs
BT {513,040, | KT} (716,230,605)
MOVEMENTS
Revenue Resorve 9} 208 657 16,909,576
SURPLLS (DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD 8,001,720 144,230,842
oF (413,832.510) (533,040,187}
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
28, Donated Assets Fund

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022 |
KShs KShs

s 264,024, 590 249,024,590

MOVEMENTS

| Donated Assels Fusil 4.238.943 il

E 173,263,533 MmN |
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
30. Amortization
| COMPUTER L
INTANGIBLE ASSETS SOFTWARE TOTAL
RATES 03
Balance Asat July 1, 2021 17313104 17,313,104
“Additions During the Year |, 769,840 1,768 84l
TOTAL COST 19,082,944 19,082,944
Accumulated Amortization B/ F 16,811,621 16,811,621
Amortzation FPor Year 2002 454 (45 454,045
Accumiulated Amortization CfF 17,265,606 17,265,660
NBY AS AT June 30, 2022 1,817,278 1817278
| NBV AS AT June 30, 2021 S01,453 01,483
COMPUTER
SOFTWARE TOTAL
RATES 03
Balance As at July 1, 2022 19,082,944 19,082,944
Additions During the Year 892,382 892,382 |
TOTAL COST 19,975,326 19,975,326
Accumulated Amortization /T 17,265,666 17,268,646 |
Asnortization For Year 20023 68,803 268,403
Accumulated Amaortization CfF 1,055,628 1,155,628 |
19,290,097 19,290,097
NBV AS AT June 30, 2023 645,229 645,220
NEV AS AT June 30, 2022 1,817,278 1,817,278

31. Employee Henefit Obligations

The University contributes 1o the statutory National Social Security Fund (NSSF). This is a defined
contribution scheme registered under the National Social Security Aet. The University's obligation
under the scheme is limited to specific contributions legislated from time 1o time and s currently at
KShs. 200 per employee per month, Other than NSSF the University also has o defined contribution
scheme opermied by Zamara Group Pension Fund, Employees contribute 10% while employers
contribute 20% of basic salary. Employer contributions are recognised as expenses in the statement
of financial performance within the period they are incureed.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continoed)
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Notes to the Financial Sty tements (Cantinued)

32, Financial Risk Management

and effects of changes in foreign currency, The University's overall risk management programme
focuses on unpredictability of changes i the business envirmnment and seeks lo minimise the
potential adverse effect of such risks on its porformance by setting acceptable levels of risk. The
University does not hedge any risks and has i place policies to ensure that crod it is only extended
1o customers with an established credit history,

The University"s finane inl risk managemen objectives and policies are detailed below:

i) Credit risk
The University has Exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable 1o
PRy amounts in full when due. Credit risk rises from cash and cash equivalents, and depasits with

Financial Risk Management

The carrying amount of financial wssets recorded in ihe financial statements fepresenting the
University's maximum Expasure to credit risk without taking sccount of the value of any collatern]
obtained is mad up as follows:

Total Fully

Description amaount performing Past due e
KShs KShs KShs KShs

As 2t 30" Jupe 2023

Reccivables from exchange 350,566,185 | 350,366,185 p 5

transactions B!

Receivables from non-cxchange | 16,324.958 | 16,394,058 I i

Irerisactions \

Bank balances 125,728,006 129,728,006 1] ]

Total | 496,619,149 | 496,619,149 0 o

As al 30 June 2022 e __1

4]
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Rmﬂiﬁ'!:hln.“- from exchange 139.434.299 | 339,334,239 [t}
transactions 2

Hmu’:!u from non-cxchange 7808321 | 17808321 0
transactions

Rank balances 85,511,713 | 85,511,713 0
Total 442,654,273 | 442,654,273 0|

The sudents under the fully performing calcgory are paying their debts as they continue trading. The
credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for uncollectible amounts
that the University has recognised in the financial statements is considered adeguate to cover any
potentially irrecoverable amounts. The University has significant eoncentration of eredit risk on
amounts due from students.

The Council sets the University's credit policies and objectives and lays down parameters within
which the various aspects of eredit risk management ore operated.

i) Liguidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management resis with the University's Council, who have
built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the University's
short, mediom and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements, The University
manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forccasts and actual cash lows.

iy Market risk

The University has put in place an internal audit function 1o assist it in assessing the risk feed by
the University on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its internal
accounting and operational controls.

Markel risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such ns interest rate, equity prices and
forcign exchange rates which will affect the University's income or the value of its holding of
financial instruments, The objective of market risk management is to manage and control markel
risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. Overall responsibility for
managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management Commitce.

The University’s Finance Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk
wmanagement policies (subject 1o review and approval by Audit and Risk Management Committes)
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aitd for the day-to-day implementation of those policies, There has been no change to the
University's exposure to market risks o the manner in which it manages and mensures the risk.

) Foreign currency risk

The University has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases of
g0ods and services that are done in ey rrencies other than the local currency. Inveoices denominated
in foreign currencies are paid after 30 days from the date of the Invoice and conversion at the time
of payment is done using the provai ling exchange rate,

The University manages toreign exchange risk form future commercial transactions and recagnised
assels and liabilities by projecting for expected sales proceeds and matching the same with expected
pavments

b} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the University’s financial condition may be adversely
affected as a result of changes in inlorest rate levels. The University's interest rate risk arises
from bank deposits, This exposes the University to cash flow interest rade risk, The interest
rate risk exposure avises mainly from interest rate movements on the University's deposits,

Management of interest rate risk

To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured 1o bank with institubions
that offer favourable interest raes,

iv) Capital Risk Management ;
The objective of the University's capital risk management is 1o safeguard the University's abifity

o continue as & going concern, The University capital struciure comprises ol the following funds:

= = =

: 2022-2023 2021-2022
[ KShs KShs
| Revalustion Reserve. 18,107,188 18,107,188
Rewined Eamings Sl (403,832,810) | (533,040,187)
Capital Reserve fz.u?g,.'iqu,?ﬁz_ 2.1??9,5%_,%2 |
TN ,040 1,584,657,763
Total Funds - - : |
Tm.rﬁ Borrowings __ 1] . l]_
| Less: Cash and Bank Balances - (129,728,006) (81,127.830)
| Net Deb/ (Exeess Cash And Cish Fauivitents) (129728006 | (51,127,830)
Gearing | = — .

43



Technienl University of Mombasa
Annual Report and Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2023,

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contin nnil
33, Related Party Disclosurcs
ature rilati

fintities and other parties related to the University include those parties whao have ability
Lo exercise control or exercise significant influcnce over its operating and financial
decisions. Related parties inchude management personnel, their associales and close
family members,
Gav L of Kenya
The Government of Kenya is the principal sharcholder of the University, holding 100% of
the University's equity interest. The Government of Kenya has provided full guaraniees
to all long-term lenders of the University, both domestic and external.
Other related s inclu

i} Ministry of Education

iy  Technical University of Mombasa Entorprises
As por the financial statement, in 2019 TUMEL ewed TUM KShs. 6,000,000 being loan lent
1o thitm 1o establish the company structures and operations. This loan was repaid and
reduced to KShs. 600,000 as per the financial stalement. TUMEL is a 100% ownied
subsidiary company of TUM,

2022-2023 | 2021-2022

KShs KShs

“I'ransactions with related parties

a) Sales to related parties
Sales of electricity 1o govt agencies

Rent income from govt. Agencies

Water sales to govt. Agencics

Others {specify) e.g. interest and bank charges

olo|lo| oS
ﬂﬂﬁﬁ-ﬂi

Tatal

B) purchases from related parties

Purchases of electricity from KFLC

Fun:haan of water from govt service providers

Rent expenses paid 1o govl agencies

Training and conference fees paid to govi FLHL'I‘II:IE'S

"Others (specify)

ﬂﬂﬁ:tl:llﬁ
lﬂ'nl:ll:lﬂa

Total
b) Grants firansfers from the government

| Grants from national gavt ' 962,347,516 961,990,433
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2022.2023 2021-2022 |

[ KShs KShs
Grants from county government 0 0
Donations in kind . 0 0
Total i 962,347,916 961,990,433
) Expenses incurred on behalf of related party i
Payments of salaries and wages for TUM employees ] 0
Payments for goods and services for TUM 0 0
Total

d) Key management compensation

Council expenses 12,178,754 8,696,421
LCompensation o key management ] 0]
Total 12,178,754 E,ﬂﬁ,-lm

3. Events after the Reporting Period

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reparting

period.
35. Ultimate And Holding University

The University is a Semi- Autonomous Government Agency under the Ministry of
Education. Its ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya,

30, Eurrcm:'j-

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).
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20, Appendices
Appendix 1: Implementation Status of Auditor-General’s Recommendations

== -

The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management
comments that were provided to the auditor.

Reference | lssue / Management | Status: Timelrame:
No. on the | Observations comments (Resolved /| (Put a date
external from Auditor Nat when you
andit Resalved) expect the
Report ixsue o be
resolved)
Guiilance Notes:

(i} Use the same reference numbers as contained in the external sudit report;

(i) Obtain the “Issue/Observation™ and *management comments”, required above,
from final external audit report that is signed by Management;

(i) Defore approving the report, discuss the timeframe with the appointed Focal
Point persons within your University responsible for implementation of each
issle;

(iv) Indicate the status of “Resolved” ar “Not Resolved™ by the dute of submitting this
report to Nutional Treasury.

---------------------------------------------
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(6
Technical University of Mombasa
P.O BOX 90420-80100

MOMBASA

(KShs)
Development (B) Intee- Total (KShs) as a2 30% | (F)=(D-E)
Number Disbursed Ministerial (T=(A+B+C) fune mﬁw
{

I 382022 80,195,660.00 | 0 0 = B0, 195,660.00 79867.765 |  327.88s
2 892022 80,195,660.00 | 0 [i] B0,195.660.00 749,867,765 327,895
3 371072022 80,195,659.00 | 0 0 80,195,659.00 79.867,765 | 327804
4 1071172022 80,195,660.00 | 0 0 80,195,660.00 79.867,765 | 327,808
5 91272022 80,195,660.00 | 0 0 80,195,560.00 79867,765 | 327895
f 30122022 80,195,559.00 | 0 0 80,195,559.00 79.B67,765 | 327,704
7 3/2/2023 80,195,660.00 | 0 0 80,195,660.00 79867765 | 3271895
] 17732023 30,195,660,00 | 0 1] 80,195,660.00 79,867,765 | 327895
9 14/4/2023 80,195,755.00 | 0 0 80,195,755.00 79,867,765 | 327999
10 5/5/2023 80,195,661.00 |0 0 80,195,692.00 79.867,765 | 327898
[ 11 962023 80,195,661.00 | 0 0 B0,195.693.00 | 81,656,391 | (1 460,730) |
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